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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF RICHLAND )
' CIVIL ACTION NO 12-CP-40-
Edward D Sloan, Jr, individually and )
on behalf of all others similarly )
situated, and South Carolina Public )
Interest Foundation, )
Plaintiff, ) Complaint for FOIA Enforcement
)
)
)
)
)

v

South Carolina Department of Revenue
and James F Etter, 1ts Director,
Defendants

Plaintiffs, compiammg 6f the Defendants, would show unto the Court

1. ‘Plaintiff Edward D Sloan,y Jr,' (“Sloan™) 1s a citizen, resident, ta;(payer, and registered
elector of Greenville County, South Carolina |

2 Plantiff South Carolina Public Interest Foundation 1s a corporation not for piofit,

organized and existing under the laws of the State of South Carolina and ‘dedlcated to the

public mterest, including the proper enforcement of the South Caroilna Freedom of

Information Act, S C Code Ann § 30-4-10 e seq (“FOIA™)

3 Defendant South Carolina Department of Revenue 1s an agency of the State of South
Carolina whose principal place of business 1s 1n Richland County

4 Defendant South Carolina Department of Revenue 1s a “public body” under FOIA

SR,

5 Defendant James F _Eiter is the Director of the South Carolina Department of Revenue
and 1s named 1n his official capacity
6. This Court has jurisdiction under FOIA

7. Venue 1s properly placed in Richland County



10

11

12

13

14

Plaintiffs served a FOIA request on the Defendants, which they received November 23,
2012 (Exhibit A, FOIA Request and Receipt)
In response to a request, FOIA requires a “public body” to “notify” the Plamntiffs “of its
determination and the reasons therefor” within 15 business days S C Code Ann § 30-
4-30(c) (emphasis added)
Defendants made a written response to the Plaintiffs on December 10, 2012 (Exhibit B),
but failed to “notify” the Plaintiffs “of [their] determination and the reasons therefor » Jd
Furthermore, Defen_dants’ December 10, 2004 letter states, “if we are unable to
release the requested file(s) you will be notified of the decision and the reasons therefor”
(Exhibit B) (emphasis added)
This “decision and the reasons therefor” must be communicated to the Plaintiffs within
15 business days S C Code Ann § 30-4-30(c)
More than fifteen days, excluding weekends and holidays, have passed, but Defendants
have failed to

a Comply with Plaintiffs’ request,

b Make a proper response to Plamtiffs’ request,

¢ Respond timely that the requested public records would be made available,

d Actually make the requested records available for copying, or

e. Furnish the records;
all 1n violation of § 30-4-30(c) ~
As a result the foregoing failures, Defendants have violated S C Code Ann § 30-4-30(c),

and Plamtiff’s “request must be considered appreved » Id



WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray the Court for an Order

1

2

Declaring that Defendants have violated FOIA,

Declaring that the request 1s deemed approved,

Enjoining Defendants to provide Plamtiff a copy of all requested documents,
Awarding the Plaintiff attorneys’ fees and costs of htigation pursuant to S C Code
Ann § 30-4-100(b), and

Granting Plaintffs Such other and further rehief as the Court deems just and ‘

proper

Respectfully submutted,
THE CARPENTER LAW FIRM, P C

//// ////ﬁ:/ :
(777 )
/am{gG/ #penter \_/
“” SC.B4rNo 1136

Jennmifer ] Mller

S C BarNo 13611

819 E North Street
Greenville, SC 29601
Telephone (864) 235-1269
Facsimile (864)242-5500
Attorneys for Plaint1ff
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EpwaArD D. StoanN, Jr.
Box 25990
GREENVILLE, S.C.

206186-0090D
864 451 7290 voice and fax

November 19, 2012 @@ EFDY

CERTIFIED MAIL NO 7011 0470 0001 5427 6230

The Hon. James F. Etiter, Direclor,
Department of Revenue

301 Gcervais Street

Columbia, SC 29201-3041

Dear Mr Etter-

Pursuant o the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, § 30-4, and
5 U.S.C. 552. | request that you mail me a copy of the following publc records:

1. A contract, including all documents included iherein by rcference, that you
formed 1n 2011 and 2012 to procure scrvices reluted to an mvasion by others of
your Internct system ’

2 The solcitations and related documents that you issued enabling you to
make those procurements.

3. All determinations that you made to enable yon (o usc the proccss,
emergency, sole source, etc., which you used (o nake those procurements.

4 All determinations that you have made subscquent to those procurcment
about those procurcments

5. All documents about any consultant{ that you used in making those
procuremecnts

To that extent plcase producc responsive documents in their enlrety,
including all attachments, enclosurcs, and exhibits but excluding drawings. In

PLAINTIFF'S

PENGAD-Bayonne, N 4
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the event you determune that a requested docurnent contans matenal or
information within the statuiory excrnptions 10 mandatory disclosurc, I request
that you review such material for discretionary disclosure Similarly. in the
event you dctermine a document contains matenal or information withm the
statutory excrnptions to mandatory disclosure, [ requcst. mn accordance with
the provisions of § 30-4-40(b). you produce any and all reasonably scgregable

portions of such document

If you detcrmunc that all documents responsive (o any individual
requested item (or portion {hereof) have not been disclosed or specifically
identificd and withheld under the claim of authonty, I request specific writien
confirmation of such fact. In the event you determine you have no document
responsive to an indwvidual request 1tem (or po: ion thereof), I request specilic
writlen confirmation of that fact

' This request constitutes notice of demand for production of all described
documents If, for any reason, you determme that you will riot send me any
document or poriion thercof, or that this request will not. m whole or 1n part,
be complied with, I request prompt notice of any action taken. In addition, ]
request such notice includc compleie 1dentification of the withheld documents
or poruions thereof by title, author. date, nature of such malterial, and a
thorough explanation of all legal and factual buses for your determmination to
deny disclosure I requcst that m responding to this request you adherc to the
tme limitations sei forth in § 30-4-30(c)

" This request for disclosure of these public records is primarily to benefit
the general pubhc, 1 request that you waive the fees, 1if any, pursuant to § 30-4-
30(b) '

1 will pay the reasonable and direct cosis of locating and reproducing the

requcsted publc records fo the extent required by § 30-4-30(b). However, I
requi st prior notice should you deterrmune thal such costs will exceed $100.

Yours very truly.

A
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State of South Carolina
Department of Revenue
300A Outlet Pointe Blvd , Columbia, South Carolina 29210
P O Box 125, Columbia, South Carolina 29214

450 (Rav 9/28/12) 6371

202201 §000.42°

December 10, 2012 02 R oss20EC 18 201°

Edward D Sloan. Jr.
P O Box 25999
Greepville, SC 29616

Re Preedom of Information request

Dear Mr Sloan

The South Carclina Department of Revenue has recerved your Freedom of Information request
dated November 19, 2032 Your request 1s currently bewng researched and reviewed A4 soon as
the snformation has been compiled, you wall be contacted again and the rcquested information

will be sent (0 you

If we are unable to locate, obtain or release the requestex! file(s) you will be notified of the
decision and the reasons for it,

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to gave me a call at (803) 898-5281 ‘ o

P VLI CLLICIILD,

"PLAINTIFF'S
EXHIBIT

To that cxtent, plcase produce responsive documents
mcluding all attachments. enclosures. and exhibits but excl

PENGAD Bayoane, N 1 18



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) INTHE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF RICHLAND )

CIVIL ACTION NO 12-CP-40-

South Carolina Department of Revenue
and James F Etter, 1ts Director,
Defendants

Edward D Sloan, Jr, individually and’ )

on behalf of all others similarly )

situated, and South Carolma Public )
Interest Foundation, ) Motion for Preliminary Injunction

Plaint:ff, ) FOIJA Enforcement

. )

v )

)

)

)

NOW COME the Plantiffs, by their undersigned attorney, and move the court for a

preliminary injunction for the enforcement of the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act,

S C Code Ann § 30-4-10 et seq (“FOIA™), and 1n support thereof would show unto the Court

1

Plamtiff Edward D Sloan, Jr, (“Sloan”) 1s a citizen, resident, taxpayer, and registered
elector of Greenville County, South Carolina

Plamtiff South Carolina Public Interest Foundation 1s a corporation not Ifor profit,
organized and existing under the laws of the State of South Carolina and dedicated to the
public interest, including the proper enforcement of the South Carolina Freedom of
Information Act, S C Code Ann. § 30-4-10 ez seq (“FOIA”)

Defendant South Carolina Department of Revenue 1s an agency of the State of South
Carolina whose principal place of business 1s in Richland County

Defendant South Carolina Department of Revenue 1s a “public body” under FOIA
Defendant James F Etter 1s the Director of the South Carolina Department of Revenue

and 1s named 1n his official capacity

10
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This Court has junisdiction under FOIA
Venue 1s properly placed 1n Richland County
Plainuffs served a FOIA request on the Defendants, which they received November 23,
2012 (Exhibit A, FOIA Request and Recept)
In response to a request, FOIA requires a “public body” to “notify” the Plaintiffs “of ;ts
determination and the reasons therefor” within 15 business days S C. Code Ann § 30-
4-30(c) (emphasis added)
Defendants made a written response to the Plaintiffs on December 10, 2012 (Exhibit B),
but failed to “notify” the Plantiffs “of [their] determination and the reasons therefor ” Id
Furthermore, Defendants’ December 10, 2004 letter states, “if we are .unable to
release the requested file(s) you will be notified of the decision and the reasons therefor”
(Exhibit B) (emphasis added)
This “decision and the reasons therefor” must be communicated to the Plaintiffs within
15 business days S C Code Ann § 30-4-30(c) .
More than fifteen days, excluding weekends and holidays, have passed, but Defendants
have failed to.

a Comply with Plainuffs’ request,

b Make a proper response to Plaintiffs’ request,

¢ Respond timely that the requested public records would be made available;

.d  Actually make the requested records available for copying, or -

e Fu;msh the records,

all in violation of § 30-4-30(c)

As a result the foregoing failures, Defendants have violated S C Code Ann § 30-4-30(c),

1
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and Plaintiff’s “request must be considered approved > Id
FOIA requires-

The General Assembly finds that 1t 1s vital mn a democratic society that public
busiess be performed 1n an open and public manner so that citizens shall be
advised of the performance of public officials and of the decisions that are
reached m public activity and m the formulation of public policy Toward this
end, provisions of this chapter must be construed so as to make 1t possible for
citizens, or their representatives, to learn and report fully the activities of their
public officials at @ minimum cost or delay to the persons seeking access to
public documents or meetings

S C Code Ann § 30-4-15 (emphasis added)

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray the Court for a Preliminary Injunction

1 Declaring that Defendants have violated FOIA,

2. Declaring that the request 1s deemed approved,
3 Enjoining Defendants to provide Planuff a copy of all requested documents,
4 Awarding the Plaintiff attorneys’ fees and costs of litigation pursuant to S C Code

Ann § 30-4-100(b), and

5 Granting Plaintiffs such other and further relief as the Court deems just and

proper.

Respectfully submutted,
THE CARPENTER LAW FIRM, P C

S C BarNo 1136

819 E North Street
Greenville, SC 29601
Telephone (864)235-1269
Facsimile (864)242-5500
Attorneys for Plaintiff

3

12
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
. )
COUNTY OF RICHLAND ) ,
) CIVIL ACTION No.: 2012-CP-40-8469
Edward D. Sloan, Jr., et al, )
) '
Plaintiffs, ) THE DEFENDANTS’ ANSWER
) TO COMPLAINT FOR
Vs ‘ ) FOIA ENFORCEMENT
)
South Carolina Department of )
Revenue and James F. Etter, its ) - '_?é
> - ey
Director, ) o o RO
) o o] -
Defendants. ) Or -
) @oz-
—-o

(224 x -
Defendants, South Carolina Department of Revenue (Department) arfid James E; Etter,
- N

its Director (Etter) (collectively referred to heremn as the Department), hereﬁi;': answser the
Plaintiffs’ Complaint for FOIA Enforcement (Complaint). Any allegations of such
Complaint not admitted, explained, or qualified herein are demed.

AS A FIRST DEFENSE
(Denials of Complaint)

1. The Department lacks sufficient information to answer the allegations of
paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Complaint and therefore denies the same.

2. Tl;e Department admits the allegations of paragraph 3 of the Complaint to the
extent the Department 1s an agency of the State of South Carolina and that its pnincipal office
was located 1 Richland County at the ime the Complaint was filed.

3. The Department admits the allegations of paragraph 4 of the C(‘)rhplamt to the
extent the Department 1s a public body as defined under S C. Code Ann § 30-4-20(a)

4. The Department admnts the allegations of paragraph § of the Complaint to the

13
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extent Etter was Director of the Department at the time the Complaint was filed and was
named n his official capacity. Etter1s no longer the Director.

5. The allegations of paragraphs 6 and 7 of the Complaint are admtted.

6. The Department admits the allegations of paragraph 8 of the Complaint to the
extent the Department received a request from Plantiffs for documents pursuant to S C.
Code Ann. § 30-4-10, et seq. (“FOLA”). The Department denies the remaining allegations of
paragraph 8 of the Complaint.

7. Paragraph 9 of the Complaint asserts only legal conclusions and makes no
allegations of fact. To the extent that the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure require an
admussion or denial, the Department demes the assertions

8. With regard to paragrz;ph 10 of the Complaint, the Department admuts that 1t
rephied to Plaintiffs by letter dated December 10, 2012 pursuant to S C. Code Ann. § 30-4-
40(c) The Department denies the remaming allegations of paragraph 10 of the Complaint,

| 9 The Departrnelnt admuts the allegations of paragraph 11 of the Complaint to

the extent 1s alleges that the Department replied to Plamtffs by letter dated December 10,

2012 pursuant to S C Code Ann. § 30-4-40(c) and further craves reference to the letter itself
10.  The allegations of paragraphs 12, 13, and 14 of the Complaint are denred.

I1.  The rcmalmn‘g paragraphs of the Complaint constitute prayers or demands for

Judgment for the relief to which Plantiffs deem themselves entitled To tl‘le extent that the

South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure reGuire an“admxsswn or denial, the Def)aru;lent

denies that Plainuffs are entitled to the relief sought.

14
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AS A SECOND DEFENSE
(No Justiciable Controversy)

12. Paragraphs | through 13 of this Answer, to the extent not mconsistent
herewith, are reterated as if fully set forth herein

13 By letter dated January 11, 2013, the Department has provided Plamtiffs with
the requested public record. o

14, Accordingly, there 1s no matter n ‘controvelsy and Plaintiffs are not entitled to
the relief sought.

AS A THIRD DEFENSE
(Good Faith)

15.  Paragraphs 1 through 16 of this Answer, to the extent not inconsistent
herewith, are reiterated as 1f fully set forth herein

16 Acting completely in good faith, the Department provided Plaintiffs with
wnitten notification as to the availability of the requested public records within the statutorily
prescribed period and, therefore the De'partment did not frustrate Plaintiffs’ FOIA request.

17. Plamtiffs chose not to inquire further upon receiving the Department’s
December 10, 2012 letter |

18.  Plaintiffs were not required to seek relief in the court and mncur Iitigation
costs, but ratﬁer chose to pursue litiéatxon

19.  Agan acting i good faith, the Department provided the requested public
records’on January 11,2013, within four (4) days of recerving the Complaint. .

20 Accordingly, Plaint:ffs are not entitled to attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to

S C Code Ann. § 30-4-100(b)

15
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Wherefore, having fully answered the Complaint, the Department prays that the same

'be dismissed with costs. The Department further prays for such other relief as the Court may

J Abraham Guttx:f(/ 0. 77567)
Counsel for Litigation

* Bemjamin J Tnipp (Bar No, 79789)
Counsel for Litigation
Milton G Kimpson (Bar No. 7917)
General Counsel for Revenue Litigation
Harry T. Cooper, Jr (Bar No. 1383)
Executive Deputy Director
Post Office Box 12265
Columbia, South Carolina 29211
803-898-5130

Attorneys for Defendants

deem just and proper

)

Columbua, South Carolina
February 5, 2013

16
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

) INTHE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

COUNTY OF RICHLAND )

CIVIL ACTION NO. 12-CP-40-08469

Edward D Sloan, Jr, individually and
on behalf of all others similarly
situated, and South Carolina Public
Interest Foundation,

Plaintiff,

V.
South Carolina Department of Revenue

and James F. Etter, its Director,
Defendants.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

DEFENDANTS’ MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFES’
MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

COMES NOW, named defendants, South Carolina Department of Revenue and
James F. Etter' (collectively referred to herenafter as “Department”) and hereby submits
the following memorandum of law in ;)pp051tion to the Plaintiffs’ Motion for Preliminary
Injunction- |

A. TIMELINE/BACKGROUND
1. By letter dated November 19, 2012, the Plaintiff Edward D. Sloan, Jr, (“Sloan”)

1ssued a request under the Freedom of Information Act, S.C. Code Ann. § 30-4-

10, et seq., to the Department for certain information. See Ex. A.

2. According to the Plaintiff, the Department received the FOIA request on or about
November 23, 2012.2

'The Plaintiffs named Mr Etter m his official capacity as Director of the
Department of Revenue Mr. Etter 1s no longer employed with the Department.

The date of receipt of the FOIA request by anyone acting on behalf of the
Department 1s actually uncertain. The return receipt provided by the Plamtff s
addressed to Mr Etter and bears a post office stamp of November 23, 2012 but the
Department’s offices would have been closed on November 23, 2012 as this was the day
after Thanksgiving Further, the signature affixed to the receipt is not recogmzable as that
of a Department employee Nevertheless, 1t 1s undisputed that the Department did

17



3. By letter dated December 10, 2012, the Department’s Public Information Director
responded to the Plaintiffs’ request as follows:

The South Carolina Department of Revenue has received
your Freedom of Information request dated November 19,
2012.  Your request 1s currently being researched and
reviewed. As soon as the information has been compiled,
you will be contacted again and the requested information
will be sent to you.

If we are unable to located, obtain or release the requested
file(s) you will be notified of the decision and the reasons
for it.

If you have questions, please do not hesitate to give me a
call at (803) 898-5281.

The December 10, 2012 letter was sent to the Plaintiff on the 11" business day
after the Department’s receipt of the FOIA request See Ex. B.

4. By letter dated December 18, 2012, the Plaintiff, through counsel, mailed his
Summons and Complaint and Notice of Motion and Motion for Preliminary
Injunction to the Richland County Clerk of Court for filing; the pleadings were
filed in Court on December 21, 2012.

S. On January 7, 2013, counsel for the Department accepted service of the Summons
and Complaint and Notice of Motion and Motion for Preliminary Injunction.

6. On January 11, 2013, the Department supplemented its December 10, 2012 letter
to the Plantiff with a letter to Plamtiff’s counsel enclosing the requested
documents - a copy of the Department’s October 2012 contract with Mandiant
Corporation. See Ex. C.

7. On January 14, 2013, Plaintiff’s counsel responded to the Department’s January
11, 2013 letter with a letter indicating the Plaintiff’s satisfaction with the
production of the Mandiant Corporation contract and suggesting that the Plaint:iff
“1s interested in receiving a copy of some of the investigative reporting on the

© ° Tinvasion, produced by the Department or Mandiant” and further indicating that
“he is likely to request 1t, unless the Department volunteers 1t in coming months.”
See Ex. D ‘

recerve the Plaintiff’s FOIA request and for the instant matter, November 23, 2012, 1s an
acceptable date of receipt

18



8 The Department has received no further FOIA requests from the Plaintiffs
B. LEGAL ARGUMENTS

1. Because the requested documents have been provided to the Plaintiff the

standards for 1ssuance of a prelimmnary 1njunction are rigt met
Our Supreme Court has recently opined in Hook Point, LLC v_Branch Banking and Trust
Co, 397 S.C. 507, 725 S E.2d 681 (2012) that “[a] preliminary injunction should issue

only 1f necessary to preserve the status quo ante, and only upon a showing by the moving

' party that without such relief 1t will suffer irreparable harm, that 1t has a likelihood of

success on the ments, and that there 1s no adequate remedy at law.” (citing Poynter

Investments, Inc. v. Century Builders of Piedmont, Inc, 387 S C. 583, 586-87. 694 S E.2d

15, 17 (2010).
While the Department acknowledges that S.C. Code Ann. § 30-4-100(a) appears to

provide that “irreparable injury for which no adequate remedy at law éxists” flows from a
v101atl10n of FOIA, the Plamntiffs’ motion should be denmied because the 1ssuance of a
prelminary 1njunction 1s unnecessary and accomplishes nothing undex\* the present
circumstances. A preliminary injunction 1s certainly not needed to preserve the status quo
or to force the Department to do anything. The Department has already produced the
requested documents and the Plaintiffs have indicated their satisfaction with the same. If
this Court wére to issue a preliminary injunction, the mjunction would compel the
Department to take an action that 1t has already taken > .

2. No justiciable controversy exists inasmuch as the Department has already

A movant must further show a likelthood of success on the merits As will be
explained, because there is no longer a justiciable controversy, this element cannot be
met such that Plaintiffs’ request for a preliminary injunction should be denied for this
reason as well.
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provided the requested documents.

In their underlying complaint, the Plantiffs seek a declaration that the Department has
violated FOIA  The fact that the requested information has now been provided, however,
renders the Plantiffs’ claim moot as there no longer 1s a justiciable controversy before
this Court.

In the seminal case of Sloan v. Friends of the Hundley, 369 S.C. 20, 630 S E2d 474

(2006), the Supreme Court ruled that the underlying FOIA case had become moot
because the Defendants’ therein provided the requested documents:

Generally, this Court only considers cases presenting a
Justiciable controversy Byrd v Irmo High School, 321 S.C.
426, 430, 468 S.E.2d 861, 864 (1996). A justiciable
controversy exists when there 1s a real and substantial
controversy which is appropnate for judicial determination,
as distingmshed from a dispute that is contingent,
hypothetical, or abstract. *261d at 431, 468 S.E 2d at 864..
A moot case exists where a judgment rendered by the court
will have no practical legal effect upon an existing
controversy because an intervening event renders any grant
of effectual relief impossible for the reviewing court.
Mathis v_South Carolina State Highway Dep't, 260 S.C.
344, 346, 195 S.E 2d 713, 715 (1973). If there 1s no actual
controversy, this Court will not decide moot or academic
questions. [d_ (citing Jones v_Dulon-Marion Human Res
Dev. Comm’n, 277 S.C. 533, 535, 291 S.E.2d 195, 196
(1982)); see also Wallace v_City of York, 276 S.C. 693,
694, 281 S E.2d 487, 488 (1981). Although this Court has
not addressed the 1ssue of mootness as it pertams to FOIA,
other courts have held that once the requested documents
are produced, a justiciable controversy no longer exists.
Trueblood v US Dept of Treasury, IR S, 943 F Supp. 64, -
67 (D D.C 1996); Misegades Douglas v_Schuyler, 456 F 2d
255, 255 (4th Cir 1972); Kaye v _Burns, 411 F.Supp. 897,
901 (SD N Y.1976).

In the instant case, Sloan concedes that Friends has
provided all documents requested pursuant to FOIA.
Additionally, since the filing of this appeal, Friends has
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conceded that 1t 1s presently a public body as related to this
liigation. The purpose of FOIA is to protect the public by
providing a mechanism for the disclosure of information by
public bodies. Bellamy v_Brown, 305 S C. 291, 295, 408
SE.2d 219, 221 (1991). Because the information Sloan
sought has been disclosed, there i1s no continuing violation
of FOIA upon which the tnal court could have issued a
declaratory judgment Additionally, Sloan has further
conceded that his interest 1n this matter is purely academic
Therefore, we find that the. guestion 1s moot, and any
judgment by this Court would constitute an advisory
opmmon. Accordingly, the tnal court did not err in granting
Friends' motion for summary judgment as to Sloan's
request for a declaratory judement.

(Emphasis added)

Although the Sloan case was decided 1n the context of motions for summary judgment,
the same principal should warrant dismussal of the Plaintiffs’ motion for preliminary
injunction. | Because there 1s no justiciable controversy, the case 1s moot.* Such an
everituahty mulitates against any possible finding t'hat the Plaintiff has a likelihood of

success on the ments. °

3. °  Attorney’s Fees should not be decided at the preliminary injunction stage.

“The Plamntiffs will undoubtedly argue that one of the exceptions to the mootness
doctrine exists to salvage their case The Department would respectfully contend that no
recognized exception 1s applicable here. Nevertheless, a rehiance on exceptions to the
mootness doctrine weakens any legiimate argument that the Plamtiffs’ requisite
likelihood of success on the merts exists.

5The Sloan Court considered 1t signtficant that after the Defendants’ release of the
requested records, Sloan’s remaming interest' in the litigation_was “purely ‘academic.”
Here, the Plaintiffs’ only remaining interest 1s somewhat academic as well See Ex. D It
may be an nteresting issue whether the Department’s December 10, 2012 response 1s
sufficient under § 30-4-30 (c). However, given that all requested documents have been
provided, this question falls short of the actual justiciable controversy needed for this
Court to invoke 1ts decision-making authority Furthermore, even if there should be a
deciston on this 1ssue, 1t should not be rendered at the preliminary injunction stage but
only after a hearing on the ments
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SC Code Ann. § 30-4-100(b) provides that a prevailing person “may be awarded
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of hitigation.” (Emphasis added) The discretionary
nature of the decision about attorney’s fees 1s underscored by the next sentence in this
same statute: “If such person or entity prevails 1n part, the court may in 1ts discretion

award him or 1t reasonable attomey fees or an appropriate portion thereof” The

" Department would respectfully submt that no decision on attoney’s fees should be made

on a motion for preliminary injunction but only after a hearing so the Court may

adequately weigh all circumstances. See, Litchfield Plantation Company v _Georgetown

County Water and Sewer District, 314 SC 30, 443 S.E 2d 574 (1994)(Court upholds the

trial court’s award of $0.00 n attorney’s fees to FOIA prevailing party.)®
Based on the foregoing, the Defendants South Carolina Department of Revenue and
James F. Etter, respectfully request that this Court deny the Plaintiffs’ motion for

preliminary injunction

Mllton G. Kimp (§ C Bar No 7917)
General Couns 1 for Litigation
J. Abraham Guttiig (S C. Bar No 77567)
Counsel for Litigation
Benjamin John Tripp (S.C. Bar No. 79789
Counsel for Litigation
Harry T. Cooper, Jr. (S.C. Bar No. 1383)
Executive Deputy Director
South Carolina Department of Revenue
P O. Box 12265

- . —  Columbia, SC 29211 -

8Sioan v. Friends of Hundley, 393 SC 152, 711 S.E.2d 895 (2011) stands for the
proposition that under certain circumstances, a prevailing FOIA hitigant may not be able
to recover attorney fees for time periods after the agency has produced the requested
information. In the event this Court decides to consider attorney fees here, the
Department respectfully requests that no fees be awarded for time periods after January
11,2013.
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Columbia, South Carolina
February 6, 2013
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EpwArD D. Sroan, Jr.
Box 235000
GREENVILLE. S.C.

208138-008D
864 451 7290 voice and fax

November 18, 2012 @@ PY

CERTIFIED MAIL NO. 7011 0470 0001 5427 6290

Thc Hon. James F, Etter, Director,
Department of Revenuce

301 Gervals Strcet

Columbia, SC 29201-3041

Dear Mr. Etter:

Pursuant (o the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, & 30-4, and
5 U.S.C. 552, I request that you mail me a copy of the following public records:
1. A contract, including all documents included iherein by reference, that you
formed in 2011 and 2012 to procure services related to an invasion by others of

your Internct system.

2. The solicitations and related documents that you issued enabling you to
make those procurements.

3. All determinations that you made to enable yout to use the process,
cmergency, sole source, etc., which you used to make those procurements.

4. All determinations that you have made subscquent to those procurcment
about those procurcments

5. Ali documents ahout any consultant that you nsed in making those
procurements.

To that extent, plcase produce responsive documents in their entirety,
including all attachments, enclosurcs, and exhibits but excluding drawings. In

= PLAINTIFRSS:

_ 5 . EX?QBIT“‘ )
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the event you detlermine that a requesied document coniains material or
information within the statuiory exemptions to mandatory disclosure, 1 request
that you review such material for discretionary disclosure. Similarly, in the
event you determine a document containg material or information within the
statutory exernptions to mandatory disclosure, [ request, in accordance with
ithe provisions of § 30-4-40(b), you produce any and all reasonably segregable
portions of such document. . »

If you determine that all docuwments responsive to any individual
requesied itemn (or portion thereof) have not been disclosed or specifically
identified and withheld undex the claim of authority, I request specific writien
confirmation of such fact. In the event you de{ermine you have no document
responsive to an individual request item {or postion thereof), 1 request specific
writien confirmation of that fact.

This reéquest constitutes notice of demand for production of all described
documents. If, for any reason, you determine that you will not send me any
document or porifon thercof, or that this request will not, in whole or in part,
be complied with, I request prompt notice of any action taken. In addition, I
request stich noticc includc complete identification of the withheld documenis
or portions thereof by title, author. date, nature of such material, and a
thorough explanation of all legal and factual bases for your determination to
deny disclosure. I request that in responding to this request you adherc to the
time limitations set forth in § 30-4-30(c).

This request for disclosure of these public records is primarily to benefit
the general public; I request that you waive the fees, if any, pursuant to § 30-4-

30(b).

I will pay the reasonable and direct costs of locating and reproducing the
requested public records to the extent required by § 80-4-30(b). However, [
requ st prior notice should you determine thai such costs will exceed $100,

Yours very truly:
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Stata of South Carolina
Department of Revenue
300A Outlet Pointe Bivd., Columbia, Scuth Carolina 28210
P O. Box 125, Columbia, South Carolina 29214

C-450 (Row, 0/aR/12) 4371

zr201 §000.42°

December 10, 2012 0501369382 06C 13 2017

Edw‘ard D Sloan. Jr.
P O. Box 25999
Greenville, SC 29616

Re: Freedom of Information request

Dear Mr Sloan:

The South Carolina Department of Revenue has recsived your Freedom of Informatlon request
dated November 19, 2012. Your request 18 cutrently being researched aud reviewed Ag soon as
the information has been compiled, you will be contacted agajn and the requested information

will be sent to you.

If we are unable to Jocate, obtain or rolease the requesterd file(s) you will be notified of the
decision and the reasons for it,

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to give me a'call at (803) 898-5281.

pluLul LTS,

To that cxtent, please produce responsive documents Q%5
including all attachments, enclosures. and exhibits but excl
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State of South Carolina
Department of Revenue
Office of General Counsel for Litigation

300A Outlet Point Blvd, 29210; P.O. Box 12265, Columbi1a, South Carolina 29211

Telephone (803) 898-5130 FAX (803) 898-5147

January 11, 2013

James G Carpenter, Esquire
The Carpenter Law Firm, P.C.
819 E. North Street
Greenwille, SC 29601

Dear Mr Carpenter:

This letter 1s in reply to the recent request of your client, Edward D. Sloan, JIr., for access to
records of the South Carolina Department of Revenue under the South Carolina Freedom of
[nformation Act, codified at S C. Code Ann § 30-4-10, et. seq The Department has
extensively considered the requests and provides the following responses. The responses are
numbered 1n correspondence with the numbered requests in Mr. Sloan’s ongmnal letter
Nothing 1n this letter or the release of any documents constitutes an adnussion by the
Department of any fault, liabihity, or other responsibihity.

1

In response to an mvasion of the Department’s nformation technology
systems in 2012, the Department formed a contract for services with
Mandiant Corporation. The Department has enclosed a copy of this contract.
The Department did not form such a contract in 2011,

The Department did not make any written solicitations or review any
documents in deciding from whom to procure these services or what specific
services to secure

The Department’s determinations supporting the procurement of services
from Mandiant Corporation were recorded 1n a Justification for Emergency
Procurement document. The Department has enclosed a copy of this
document.

The Department has not made any other determinations in connection with
the procurement of services from Mandiant Corporation.

The Department did not use any documents about any consultants in
procuring these services.
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James G Carpenter, Esquire
Page Two
January 1 1, 2013

As we discussed by phone earhier this week, the Department was inttially unsure as to exactly
what documents Mr. Sloan’s request was describing. As a result of our conversation, the
Department has focused these responses on matenals related to the network secunty breach

that the Department announced on October 26, 2012 Please let me know 1f these responses
do not adequately address your client’s requests or if your chent desires additional

documents.

The South Carolina Legislature has charged the Department with administening and
enforcing tax laws 1n order to support a healthy and orderly state, and this responsibility
entails maintaining openness and accountability The Department undertakes its service with
all due fidelity, and 1t appreciates your client’s interest and willingness to consider the
Department’s decision making and performance. The Department sincerely thanks you and
your client for your continued attention, cordiality, and patience 1n working with 1t, as 1t 1s
indrspensable to the Department’s success 1n serving the State of South Carolina.

If you have any questtons or concerns, you can contact me at kimpsom(@sctax org or (803)
898-5131. You can also contact Ben Tripp, an attorney in my office who'is farmiliar with this

matter, at tnppb@sctax org or (803) 898-5773.

Sincerely,

OFF SEL FOR LITIGATION

General Coungel for Litigation

Encls.
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) JAMES G CarpeNTER

JdITes tapenter Dearpentariowfirm rog

JENNIFER ] Mitreaq
jennifer miller Dearpentertawfirm et

L WARREN CLAYTON, I}
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAw wurrenclayran@tarpenter/awﬁrmnet

"UCENSED INSC % N C

January 14, 2013

Milton G. Kimpson

General Counsel for Litigation

South Carolina Department of Revenye
P O Box 12265

Columbia, SC 29211

Re Sloan, et al v South Carolina Department of Revenue, et al

Dear Milton-

Thank you for your January 11 e-mail. letter and response to our FOIA request

My chent dues not request any information about Experian or Sourcelink hom the Department
at this time :

I noticed that the Department’s Determination to enable 1t to procure pursuant to SC Code Ann,
§ 11-35-1570 1s not dated Wil this Determination apply 10 an automatic renewal of the
procurement contract pursuant 1o 1ts section 5? We would consider a renewal to be a separate

procurement.

My client is interested 1n recetving a copy of some of the mvestigative reporting on the invasion,
produced by the Department or Mandiant He 1s likely to request it, unless the Department
volunteers 1t in coming months

My client has no interest in documentation related to the Department’s etforts to deter future
invasions.

My client’s reimbursable costs on this matter are modest at this point. [f the Department 1s
willing to concede that its December 10 response to his FOIA request was msufficient to'satisfy
the requirements of the law., [ propose that a quick Consent Order to conclude the suit will be
a'ppropri?tc. o T et e

)
i . L BFOCS I

Shall [ draft one?

THE CARPENTER Law FiaM, PC 319 EAST NORTH STREET GREENVILLE SC £2601
TeLEPHONE (364) 235 1269 « FacsiviLe (364) 331 3083 + www CARPENTERLAWFIRM NET
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?}yoms,

James G. Carpenter

Since
]

£ b edebiebnted St o n an
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ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW

December 18, 2012

The Hon. Jeanette McBride
P O Box 2766
Columbia, SC 29202

i

Re Sloan, et al v South Carolina Department of Revenue et al

Dear Ms McBride

*JAMES G CARPENTER
James carpenter@carpenterlawfirm net

JENNIFER ] MILLER
Jennifer miller@carpenterlawfirm net

L WARREN CLAYTON, LI
warren clayton@carpenterlawfirm net

"LICENSED INSC & N C

We enclose an original and one copy of the Civil Action Cover Sheet, a Summons, and a
Complaint, and a Motion for Preliminary Injunction in the above-caption action

We also enclose a check ($175) for the filing fees (8150 for the Complant, and $25 for the

Motion)

Please file-stamp the extra copy and return 1t to ys in the enclosed self-addressed, postpaid

envelope

Thank you very much for your help and cooperation If you have any questions, please

telephone me

Sincerely you

James G Carpenter

Enclosures

THE CARPENTER LAW FIRM, PC  + 819 EAST NORTH STREET + GREENVILLE, $C 29601
TELEPHONE (864) 235-1269 « FACSIMILE (864) 331-3083 « wwW CARPENTERLAWFIRM NET
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[ it State of South Carolina Court of Common Pleas

o~
:

County of Richland 2008-CP-40-1038

Edward D. Sloan, Jr., et al.
-VS- : TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

S.C. Department Of Revenue,
et al.

February 6, 2013
Columbia, South Carolina

BEVFORE:

C |

v The Honorable G. Thomas Cooper, Jr., Judge.
APPEARANTCE S:

James G. Carpenter, Esquire
Attorney for the Plaintiffs

Milton Kimpson, Esquire
Benjamin Tripp, Esquire
Attorneys for the Defendants

Daphne D. Helms
Circuit Court Reporter
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February 6, 2013 hearing 2

The Court: All right. ©Now Sloan versus D.O.R.

Mr. Kaimpson: Judge Cooper, if I might pass up a
memorandum of law. Good morning, sir.

The Court: Good morning.

Mr. Kimpson: Thank you, sir. Good to see you. Of
course, I have provided that to Mr. Carpenter.

The Court: I'm sorry?

Mr, Kimpsgn: I've provided that to Mr. Carpenter.

The Court: All right. |

Court Reporter: Mr. Kimpson, you're definitely going to
have to speak up when you start preseﬁting your argument

Mr. Kimpson: Certainly.

The Court: Mr. Carpenter, the only thing in this file
1s the summons and complaint. Did you file something else?

Mr. Carpenter: With Fﬁé summons and complaint I filed a
motion for a preliminary injunction, Your Honor. I would
expect it to be behind the summons and complaint. I have
another copy if the Court needs if.

The Court: Come here. This 1s the only thing... This
is literally the only thing in the file!

(Mr. Carpenter looks at the document at the bench.)

The Court: When did you file it? If you filed it
yesterday, I don't have it---

Mr. Carpenter: Oh, no, no. I filed this with the

summons and complaint.
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The Court: Well, maybe it got in the...

Mr. Carpenter: The motion is very, very similar to the
complaint itself. I have another copy, Your Honor.

The Court: Have you got a stamped copy?

Mr. Carpenter: Yes, sir.

The Court: Mr. Kimpson, well, you obviously were
provided with something.

Mr. Kimpson: Yes, Your Honor. We are aware of the
motion for a preliminary injunction, Your Honor.

The Court: Well, I'm not.

Mr. Kimpson: Well, of course, part of our argument is
-- part of our argument is going to be, Your Honor, that we
don't need to havé this motions hearing today.

Mr. Carpenter: This is the file stamped copy of...

The Court: Did you hear what he said? |

Mr. Carpenter: I heard what he said and I unde;stand
why he said it, and I'll address that.

The Court: Okay. I just didn't know if we needed
something on the record -- I mean, if there's some agreement.

Mr. Carpenter: Well, we tried. We tried to -- we tried
to resolve it all by agreement.” We sent a couple of consent
orders back and forth, but we were unable to. It comes down
to---

The Court: All right. Well, let's---

Mr. Carpenter: It's a very narrow issue.
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The Court: Well, start from the beginning.

Mr. Carpenter: Yes, sir. From the beginning, Mr. Sloan
sent a FOIA request to the Department of Revenue asking for
certain documents. He malled'it out on Monday,

November 19th. He has a return receipt that is stamped by
the post office November 23rd which they point out is the day
after Thanksgiving and nobody was there, but the timing is

not the real issue. On December 10 the Department' of Revenue

sent back a letter, which we have it as Exhibit B. to our

complaint. I have extra copies here if the Court wants it.

The Court: What date? x

Mr. Carpenter: December 10. That was within the 15
business days required by the statute, but what they said was
-- 1n tﬂe'second paragraph of thgir letter they said, "If Qe
are unable to iocate, obtain, or release the requested files,
you will be notified of the decision and the reasons for it.®
This is very typical or fairly common in how government
agencies respond to FOIA requeéts, and part of that arises
from the statute. J

The statute requires tha£ within 15 business days the --
each public body shall within 15 days -- and I'm ellipsing -
(verbatim) -- doing an ellipsis of the statute. This is
30-4-30. "Each public body shall within 15 days notify the

person making such request of its determination and the

reasons therefor." What the Department of Revenue did was
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within 15 days they sent a letter that says: We will notify
you of the decision and we will notify you of the reasons
therefor, but they didn't say when they were going to do it.
They basically gave themselves an unauthorized extension of
time from what the statute requires. The statute requires
that within 15 days the public body shall"notify the person
making such request of its determination and the reasons
therefor, and they within 15 da&é said we will notify you of
our decision and the reasons therefor. And we believe -- and
that's tﬂe nub of the dispute, Your Honor.

They have since then provided the documents we asked for
well beyond the 15 days, but the point that Mr. Sloan would
like this Court to decide is: Does this letter that says "we
will notify you" comply with the statute that says, "Within
15 days the public body shall notify the requesting party of
its determination and the reasons therefor"? We contend that
this letter does not satisfy the statute,’ and we have
requested a declaratory judgment.

Now, the statutes say that any citizen can seek
declaratory and/or injunctive relief for a violation of FOIA.
Injunctive relief, as Mr. Kimpsor will sodn argue," that -
there's -- there's not a point that we need an injunction to
get the documents. What we need 1s declaratory relief that
says this response did not fulfill the public body's

obligation under FOIA. I think that would be an important
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decision, not only for this case but for all the other public
bodies who have--- )

The Court: I understand.

Mr. Carpenter: ---pretty much taken it on themselves to
give themselves an unlimited extension of time just by
writing a letter that says we will tell you when we feel like
it. That's a slight exaggeration, but that's the effect of
it. And, Your Honor, I think that's a case of great public
importance because it's very widespread. I don't‘have
statistics or anything else, but:that's what they do. When
you send a FOIA request, if they're so inclined they'll send
a letter that says we'll tell you someday when we feel like
it, and then they give themselves basically an unlimited
extension of time simply by writing you a letter back instead
of doing what the statute says is notifying you of the
determination and the reasons therefor. l

So what we need is é decision and the basis -- in the
nature of a declaratory judgment. We’filed our motion with
the complaint---

The Court: That's the only relief you're seeking.

Mr. Carpenter: Yes. We filed a-motidn--- -

The Court: Not attorney's fees or---

Mr. Carpenter: Oh, yes, attorney's fees, of course.
Yes.

The Court: Well, that's -- that's why I'm asking you.
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Mr. Carpenter: Yes. Yes, attorney's fees. The statute
calls for attorney's fees, and at this point they're
relatively modest. I was hoping Mr. Kimpson would say, well,
let's go ahead -- since it's such a narrow issue, let's go
ahead and argue ié today. I don't anticipate he's going to
say that. If he does, that would be great. But like I said,
we filed the motion with the complaint before we got the
documents, and now we have the documents but this issue still
remains.

The Court: All right. Thank you. Mr. Kimpson?“

Mr. Kimpson: If it may please the Court? Your‘Honor,
if T might, I'd like to introduce Ben Tripp who is alsoc with
me from the department.

The éourt: All right.

Mr. Kimpson: And let me apologize in the beginning for
my voice. Your Honor, the problem, as Mr. Carpenter has so
articulaﬁed, is that this is a motion for a preliminary
injunction. There are certain standards in this state for
issuing .a preliminary injunction. What he also said,
however, is that what he really wants is a decision on the
merits, a deglaratofy-judgménﬁ;’that'the department's
response was not adequate. Your Honor, we would submit to
the Court that that would be a decision on the merits of this
case. We are not here today for a decision on the merits.

Now, we've submitted the memorandum. There are other
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February 6, 2013 hearing 8

1 reasons. Thas is not a justiciable controversy. The
2 department has already provided the document. I understand
3 the issue that Mr. Sloan would like heard, but, Your Honor,
4 we would ask this Court to deny what's before it today, the
5 issuance of a preliminary injunction. If we need to then go,
6 to court on the merits of this case, that's fine with the
7 department. We'll be prepared to do that, but we would
8 submit to the Court that it's not appropriate on a motion for
9 a preliminary injunction to hear the merits of this case.
10 Your Honor, I would point to one further -- one thing
11 further. Rule 40(h) of the Rules of Civil Procedure
12 essentially says that no cases could be scheduled for a
(’:~ 13 contested hearing on the merits until 120 days after the

14 filing of the complaint. We're at about day 41. My 30 days

15 to answer this complaint runs out today.

16 Now, we did file an answer last night, but, Your Honor,
17 we -- it would be -- we would submit that it's inappropriate
18 to decide the merits of this issue and to -- according to Mr.

19 Carpenter, I have no knowledge of this that other state
20 agencies routinely do this. I don't have any knowledge of

- 21 |-this. But to thé extent-this is a matter of public-interest,
22 we would ask the Court that it's not appropriate to decide
23 this based on the wmotion before you today. Thank you, Your
24 Honor.

== 25 The Court: All right. Mr. Carpenter?

——
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Mr. Carpenter: One other thing that I'll briefly
respond to: Opposing counsel's argument is that in the
findings and purpose under the FOIA act, the general assembly
said toward this end, the provision of this chapter must
be---

Court Reporter: Whoa, whoa, wait. Slow down. I'm
sorry. Just start over. You were reading very fast.

Mr. Carpenter: Oh, I'm sorry.

Court Reporter: That's okay.

Mr. Carpenter: What I'm reading from is 30-4-15,
findings and purpose of the FOIA statute. "Toward thié end, "
it says, "provisions of this chapter must be construed so as
to make it possible for citizens or their representatives to
learn and report fully the activities of the public officials
at a minimum cost or delay to the person seeking access to
the public documents or meetings."

I think a number of courts have read this to require
that FOIA actions are heard much more quickly than an
o?dinary action, and to that end we would -- we would cite
this particular statute as the basis for‘encouraging the
Court-to go aheéd énd rule either today ot éet it for a
hearing very quickly so that wé can have this heard with a
minimum of costs or delay.

The Court: It's an aside, but is there not some

consideration being given to your position in the legislature
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at the present time?

Mr. Carpenter: I think they routinely take this up and
it routinely gets ignored.

The Court: All right. Well, that's anecdotal. All
right. Other than -- have you submitted a memorandum or
anything in addition to the motion?

Mr. C;¥penter: No, Your Homor. I was prepared to hand
up copies of the relevant'sections of the statute.

The Court: Well, I've got the statute, so...

Mr. Carpenter: All right. But it's a fairly simple
straightforward issue I think, Your Honor.

YThe Court: Well, what about his position that it's not
appropriate to issue a declaratory judgment without some
factual findings or some testimony or some other evidence in
the record when your motion is for a preliminary injﬁnction?

Mr. Carpenter: Well, Your Honor, we both -- both
submittedlin response to the -- in support of the complaint,
I submitted exhibits that show Mr. Sloan's letter, their
letter in response.< Then I quoted the statute. In their --
in their motion they submitted much the same thing. |

The Court: ‘Waié a‘minute.f Hold it. "Their memorandum?

Mr. Carpenter: Their memorandum, yes, Your Honor. I'm
sorry.

The Court: Okay. Go ahead.

Mr. Carpenter: They submitted the same letter from Mr.
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1 Sloan as Exhibit A. I think it's the same photocopy, if I

2 look at my handwriting. Exhibit B. 1s their same letter, the
3 same as ours. Then they added a few other things that show

4 what happened later on. But there's no dispute that Mr.

5 Sloan sent thém thexletter in November, and they sent the

6 letter back December 10 and they said we'll tell you -- we'll
7 make a decision and we'll tell you the reasons for it.

8 The Court: You say there's no other evidence to be---

9 Mr. Carpenter: I can't think of any, Your Honor. Maybe
10 Mr. Kimpson can, but I can't think of any other. . The sole

11 issue is that paragraph in their response didn't meet the

12 | statute, and to me it's fairly clear that it didn't.

13 The Court: Okay. Mr. Kimpson?

14 Mr. Kimpson: Judge Cooper, I'd point out -- and Qe have
15 recited a long provision from the 2006 Sloan case. This case

16 is moot. We have provided the documents.

17 The Court: Which Sloan case?

18 Mr. Kimpson: This is--- “

19 The Court: There are numerous Sloan cases.

20 Mr. Kimpson: I'm sorry, Your Honof. Sloan versus

- 21 Friends. of. the. Hunley. - . -

22 The Court: Hunley.
23 Mr. Kimpson: This is the first Supreme Court opinion,

24 the 2006 decision, where in that case by the time the case

25 wound its way through the court, the documents had been
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provided. The Court essentially agreed with the trial Court
that there was no longer a judicial, excuse me, a justiciable
controversy.

The Court: Right.

Mr. Kimpson: 2And declared the case to be moot. So

there are legal arguments that need to be made. There's some

.factual arguments, .factual .presentations, that we would -

certainly want to present to the Court with regard to an
attorney's fee issue, but,' Your Honor, even more so, there
are legal reasons why the case can't go forward because it's
moot.

The Court: All right.

Mr. Kimpson: And, Your Honor, we would again assert
that based on the prevailing case law, this is just not
appropriate at the stage of a preliminary injunction. That's
what we're here for today. Mr. Sloan filed a preiiminary
motion for a preliminary injunction. He brought us here, and
based on what he filed, Your Honor, we would urge the Court
not to grant the preliminary injunction.

The Court: All right. Anything further?

- 7 "Mr. Carpenter: I'm familiar with the Sloan versus

Hunley case, Your Honor. I dealt with it for five years.
This case is different in that they've got an explicit
statement that is to me an explicit contradiction of the

statutory requirement.
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The Court: All right. I'll take a look at their
memorandum, and I'll let you know.
Mr. Kampson: Yes, Your Honor. Thank you.

Mr. Carpenter: Thank you, Your Honor.

i

{(Whereupon, the proceedings were concluded. There were

no exhibits introduced.)
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I, the undersigned Daphne D. Helms, official court
reporter for the Fifth Judicial Circuit of the State of South
Carolina, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true,
accurate, and complete transcript of record of all the
proceedings had and evidence introduced in the trial of the
captioned case, relative to appeal, in the circuit court for
Richland County, South Carolina, on the 6th of February,
2013.

I do further certify that I am neither of kin,

counsel, nor interest to any party hereto.

) March 22, 2013

Nl M,

Daphne D. Helms, court reporter
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